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OUR VISION

“To be the trusted leader
creating better built environments”

OUR MISSION

“To convert our clients architectural needs and desires
to conceptual designs, and constructively develop them into reality,

as a valuable return on investment, through a committed team,
whilst ensuring the optimal return to shareholders”
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, it is with pleasure that I welcome you to the 31st Annual General
Meeting of Kelsey Developments PLC and present to you the Annual Report and Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended 31st March 2014.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Though global economic conditions continued to remain weak, GDP growth rebounded to 7.3% in 2013
when compared to 6.4% achieved the previous year. GDP growth was driven by the tourism sector which
showed a growth of 27% on the previous year and an increase in exports. Inflation reflected a downward
trend in 2013, averaging 6.9% for the year. The fiscal deficit was 5.8% of GDP while the ratio of debt to GDP
fell marginally to 78.4%.

Growth was stimulated by the Central Bank’s monetary policy which resulted in lower benchmark interest
rates during 2013. Commercial bank interest rates declined noticeably from 14.3% in January to 9.9% in
December 2013. However, despite lower interest rates, private sector credit growth was sluggish with
year-on-year growth slowing to 7.5% in 2013 when compared to 17.6% in 2012. Increased access to domestic
and foreign capital also contributed to the decline in demand for bank credit during 2013.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The growth in the construction sector continued to be driven by government spending on infrastructure
and development projects such as the South Colombo Harbour project and the Outer Circular Highway. The
sector witnessed an increased level of activity with several large scale foreign and local investments being
initiated during the year.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

A turnover of Rs. 95.6 million was recorded in 2013/14 which was a significant decline compared with
Rs. 231.5 million achieved the previous year. This was primarily due to the company’s inability   to consistently
source high-quality lands for development as housing projects.

The Group however recorded profits after tax of Rs. 136.1 million which was a substantial improvement
against the loss of Rs. 55.4 million incurred in the previous financial year. A one-off capital gain of Rs. 177.3
million was realised from the sale of a property in Nuwara Eliya in which the Group relinquished its rights
to its co-owner and ultimate parent Dunamis Capital PLC. This course of action became necessary as the
property could not be developed in the ordinary course of business due to circumstances outside the
company’s control.

Lower inventory levels following the disposal of the property in Nuwara Eliya resulted in finance costs
reducing to Rs. 10.4 million compared to Rs. 45.4 million incurred in the previous year. Operating expenses
were managed effectively and were maintained at the same level as in the previous year.
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OPERATIONS

During the year the company concluded sales on its existing projects and launched a new project Fairfield
Gardens in Gampaha.  As already noted the company also divested its property in Nuwara Eliya realizing a
healthy capital gain and increasing its capacity to invest.

In the last quarter the company purchased a 6 acre property in Mount Lavinia for development as an
exclusive gated community housing project. The project, “Templer’s Square” will consist of 100 houses
with facilities including 24 hour security, swimming pool, gymnasium and kiddies play area with total
expected revenue above Rs. 2 billion over a 2 year period. The initial response on this project has been
extremely positive.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

With attractive lending rates offered by commercial banks in the country, demand is set to grow in the
housing sector.

Sales at Templer’s Square, Mount Lavinia have exceeded expectations and with almost 50% of properties
already reserved there is a reasonable expectation that all remaining homes will be sold in the current
financial year. The company will renew its marketing efforts once model houses and common facilities are
ready in September 2014.

In the first quarter of 2014, Riverfront Luxury Bungalows was launched in Kaduwela and all properties were
sold out within a week. This success is a validation of the strength of the product offering and Kelsey’s
strong brand presence.

Kelsey will continue to identify and capitalize on opportunities and has already identified properties to
launch future housing projects in the financial year 2014/2015.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I take this opportunity to express my deep appreciation to my fellow members of the Board for their
continued support and valuable contribution during the year.

In conclusion, I wish to thank all our clients for their continued patronage, our stakeholders for the
confidence placed in us, and our staff for their commitment and hard work.

Dinesh Schaffter
Managing Director
18 July 2014
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PROFILE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORSPROFILE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORSPROFILE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORSPROFILE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORSPROFILE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Dinesh Schaffter – Managing Director
ACMA, LLB

Mr. Schaffter counts over 20 years experience in the Financial Services and Manufacturing sectors. He serves as Joint
Managing Director of Dunamis Capital PLC and is a Director of other Dunamis subsidiaries. Mr. Schaffter is an Associate
Member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (UK) and holds a Bachelor of Laws – Honours Degree (LLB)

Ms. Manjula Mathews - Executive Director
MBA, FCMA

Ms. Mathews brings to the Board over 20 years experience in General Management and Finance, both in Sri Lanka and
overseas. She currently serves as Managing Director of Dunamis Capital PLC and is a director of other Dunamis
subsidiaries.

Ms. Mathews was formerly the Finance Director at Janashakthi Insurance PLC one of the leading insurers in the country
where she continues to hold a Non-Executive position. She is a Fellow Member of the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants (UK), and holds a Masters Degree in Business Administration from the University of Cambridge (UK).

Mr. Nihara Rodrigo, Independent Non - Executive Director
President’s Counsel

Mr. Rodrigo’s professional career span of over 30 years is enriched with diversified expertise and experience in various
fields including different aspects of law and e-commerce. Mr. Rodrigo served in the Attorney General’s Department for
over 15 years. He has represented Sri Lanka at United Nations Forums in Geneva and Vienna. He serves as the Chairman
of the Awards Board of the Information and Communication Technology Agency of Sri Lanka – Capacity Building Program.

Mr. Rodrigo also serves as a Director of Dunamis Capital PLC and related companies including First Capital Holdings
PLC.

Mr. Eardley Perera, Independent Non - Executive Director
Chartered Marketer

Mr. Perera is a Chartered Marketer and Graduate of the Chartered Institute of Marketing, UK with over 40 years of
experience in management. He has undergone management training in Sweden, UK, South Korea, the Philippines and
Singapore.

Currently, he is the Non-Executive Chairman of M&E (Private) Limited and a Director of Keells Food Products PLC,
Janashakthi Insurance PLC ,ODEL PLC, Sting Consultants (Private) Limited, Brand Finance Lanka (Private) Limited and MAS
Tropical Foods (Private) Limited. Mr. Perera also serves as a Director of Dunamis Capital PLC and related companies
including First Capital Holdings PLC.

He is a member of the Board of Study of the Postgraduate Institute of Management, University of Sri Jayewardenepura
(PIM) and is actively engaged in management education and consultancy.

Mr. Chandana de Silva, Independent Non - Executive Director
FCA (England & Wales), FCA (Sri Lanka)

Mr. de Silva has held several senior management positions including that of Chief Financial Officer for Level (3)
Communications in Europe a NASDAQ quoted company and Head of Financial Planning for British Telecommunications
PLC. Since moving back to Sri Lanka in 2002 he has worked for MAS Holdings in a variety of roles and established the
Supply Chain Management function, set up the MAS training centre and until December 2011 was the Chief Executive
Officer of the MAS Investment Division.

He consults in strategy development, supply chain management and family business succession planning and is on the
board of MAS Investments (Private) Limited, Hemas Transportation (Private) Limited, Hemas Power PLC, Eureka Technologies
(Private) Limited and 247, Techies (Private) Limited and Sea-Change Partners Lanka (Private) Limited. He also serves as a
Director of Dunamis Capital PLC.
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The Directors present to the members their 31st Annual Report together with the Audited financial statements of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 18 July 2014.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors’ responsibility in relation to the financial statements is detailed on page 09.

LEGAL STATUS

Kelsey Developments PLC was incorporated in 1983 under the provisions of the Companies Act No.17 of 1982 and
reregistered under the Companies Act No.7 of 2007 on 05 September 2007. In 1984 the Company was listed on the
Colombo Stock Exchange.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are the construction, development and sale of quality residential houses and
apartments and the development and sale of land plots.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

A review of the operations of the Company during the financial year and the results of those operations are contained in
the Managing Director’s Report on pages 03 and 04 of the Annual Report. This report forms an integral part of the
Directors’ Report.

RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board of Directors has satisfied itself that there exists an effective and comprehensive system of internal controls
to monitor, control and manage the risks to which the Company is exposed to carry on its business in an orderly manner,
to safeguard the assets and to secure as far as possible the reliability and accuracy of the  records. A Risk Management
report is included on page 13.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the application of corporate governance principles as detailed on
pages 10 to 11 of this report.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the financial statements are given on pages 20 to 27. There were no
changes in the accounting policies adopted during the year under review.

DIRECTORATE

The following were the Directors of the Company as at 31 March 2014.

1. Mr. Dinesh Schaffter
2. Ms. Manjula Mathews
3. Mr. Nihara Rodrigo
4. Mr. Eardley Perera
5. Mr. Chandana L. de Silva

The profiles of the Directors are given on page 05 of the Annual Report.

RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION

Mr. Chandana L. de Silva retires by rotation in terms of Article 85 and being eligible offers himself for re-election.

DIRECTORS INTERESTS

During the accounting period under review, an Interests Register was maintained by the Company as required by the
Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. All Directors have made declarations as provided for in Section 192 of the said Act.

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORSANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORSANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORSANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORSANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Income tax expenses have been computed at the rates given in Note 22 to the financial statements.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Details of property, plant and equipment and their movements during the year are given in Note 03 to the financial
statements.

RESERVES

There were no material transfers to or from reserves during the financial year as disclosed in Notes 10 and 11 to the
financial statements.

STATED CAPITAL

The stated capital of the Company as at 31 March 2014 was Rs. 232,390,325 consisting of 17,429,274 ordinary shares.
The movements in profits and reserves are given in the Statement of Changes in Equity on page 18 to the financial
statements.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend dividends for the year ended 31 March 2014.

EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION PLAN AND PROFIT SHARING SCHEME

The Group did not have an employee share option plan and profit sharing scheme as at year end.

SHARE INFORMATION AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2014 there were 1,308 registered shareholders. Share information and the twenty largest shareholders
as at 31 March 2014 are listed on pages 39 and 40 of the Annual Report. Information relating to earnings, dividends, net
assets per share and market value of a share are given under “Decade at a Glance” on page 38. Information on share
trading is stated   under “Investors’ Information” on page 39 of the Annual Report.

CORPORATE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group did not make any donations to charity.

STATUTORY PAYMENTS AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Directors to the best of their knowledge and belief are satisfied that all statutory payments due to the Government
and in relation to employees have been made and the Group has not engaged in any activities contravening laws and
regulations.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

The Group is committed to providing equal opportunities to all employees. It is the company’s policy to give full and fair
consideration to persons with respect to applications for employment, continued employment, training, career
development and promotion, having regard to each individual’s particular aptitude and abilities.

GOING CONCERN

The application and non application of the going concern basis is more fully described in Note 2.1.3 on pages 21 and 22.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE   LC                                                                                                                          KELSEY DEVELOPMENTS
PLC
No material events have taken place after the reporting date which require an adjustment or disclosure in the
financial statements, other than as disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont.)ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont.)ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont.)ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont.)ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont.)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Company’s Auditors during the period under review were Messrs Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants. The fees paid
to Auditors are disclosed in Note 21 to the financial Statements.

Based on the declaration from Messrs Ernst & Young, and as far as the Directors are aware, the Auditors do not have any
relationship or interest in the Company or its subsidiaries other than those disclosed in the above paragraph. Messrs
Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants, have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditors of the Company
for the ensuing year.

In accordance with the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 a resolution proposing the re-appointment of Messrs Ernst & Young,
Chartered Accountants, as auditors to the Company will be submitted at the Annual General Meeting.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements is given on pages 14 and 15 of the Annual Report.

AUDITORS’ RIGHT TO INFORMATION

Each person who is a Director of the Group at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

• So far as each Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware.

• Each Director has taken steps that he or she ought to have taken as a Director to make himself or herself aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s Auditors are aware of that information.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 31st Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on 27 August 2014 at the Auditorium of Postgraduate
Institute of Management, No.28, Leslie Ranagala Mawatha, Colombo 08.

The notice convening the meeting and the agenda are given on page 42.

This Annual Report is signed for and on behalf of the Board,

(Sgd.) (Sgd.)
Dinesh Schaffter Eardley I. Perera
Managing Director Director

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont.)ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont.)ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont.)ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont.)ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont.)
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITYSTATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITYSTATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITYSTATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITYSTATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Set out below are the responsibilities of the Directors in relation to the financial statements of the Company.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Company and its subsidiaries maintain proper accounting records
of all the transactions, and prepare financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at reporting date and of the profit or loss for the year ended on that reporting date in accordance with the
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. The Directors are required to prepare these accounts on a going concern basis unless it
is not appropriate.

The financial statements of the Company and the Group have been certified by the Finance Manager of the Company who
is responsible for the preparation of financial statements as required by the Act. The financial statements have been
signed by two Directors on 18th July 2014 in accordance with Section 150 (1) (c) and 152 (1) (c) of the Companies Act.

Directors are also responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records which correctly record and explain the
Company’s transactions and also determine the Company’s financial position with reasonable accuracy at any time are
maintained by the Company enabling the preparation of financial statements and further enabling the financial
statements to be readily and properly audited, in accordance with the Section 148 (1) of the Act. The Directors have
therefore caused the Company and its subsidiaries to maintain proper books of accounts and regularly review financial
reports at their meetings. The Board also reviews and approves all interim financial statements prior to their release.

The Board of Directors accepts the responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of the financial statements presented.
The Directors confirm that the financial statements have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies on a
consistent basis and appropriate estimates and judgments have been made to reflect the true substance and form of
transactions.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2014 are in conformity with the requirements of
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (LKAS/SLFRS) laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (ICASL).
Directors have taken reasonable measures to safeguard the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries and to prevent
and detect frauds and other irregularities. In this regard, the Directors have laid down effective and comprehensive
internal control systems.

The Auditors of the Company, Messrs Ernst & Young who were reappointed in accordance with a resolution passed at the
last Annual General Meeting were provided with all necessary information required by them in order to carry out their
audit and to express an opinion which is contained on pages 14 and 15 of this Annual Report.

The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge, all statutory payments due in respect of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at the reporting date have been paid or where relevant provided for.

The Directors further confirm that after considering the financial position, operating conditions and regulatory  and
other factors, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company possesses adequate resources to continue
in operation for the foreseeable future and that the going concern basis is the most appropriate in the preparation of
these financial statements.

By Order of the Board

(Sgd.)
K H L Corporate Services Limited
Secretaries

18 July 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCECORPORATE GOVERNANCECORPORATE GOVERNANCECORPORATE GOVERNANCECORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the Company’s Corporate Governance and the need to ensure the
highest standards of accountability to all stakeholders. Kelsey Developments PLC is fully committed to the principles of
good governance and recognizes that good Corporate Governance is the corner-stone of a successful organization.

The Company is committed to acting with integrity, transparency and fairness in all of its dealings, and considerable
emphasis is placed by the Board on the development of systems, processes and procedures to ensure the maintenance
of high standards throughout the organization.

The Board comprises of three Non-Executive Directors and two Executive Directors all of whom possess a broad range of
skills and experience across a range of industries and functional areas. Detailed profiles of each member of the Board
are provided in a separate section of this Annual Report.

The Board responsibilities have been depicted in page 09 under Statement of Director’s Responsibilities. The Board of
Directors have retained specific power such as the approval of major capital expenditure, approval of the annual budget
and approval of strategic and operational plans and have delegated the implementation of strategic objectives decided
by the board to the Managing Director and heads of divisions. The progress of the implementation of strategic and
operational plans is reviewed at monthly performance review meetings.

Advice and guidance is provided to the senior management team at monthly performance review meetings which provide
an opportunity to evaluate progress and ensure accountability of the senior management team. A strong focus on
training and career development has created a committed and empowered workforce who continue to generate value
and drive the Company towards high standards of achievement.

The Board reviews strategic and operational issues, approves interim and annual financial statements and annual
budgets, assesses performance and ensures compliance with all statutory and regulatory obligations. Members of the
Board are expected to attend the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, Board meetings and Performance Review
meetings. Material is provided to members of the Board well in advance of scheduled meetings to allow adequate time
for review and familiarization and to facilitate decision making at meetings.

The Board meets frequently in order to ensure the effective discharge of its duties. Formal Board Meetings were held five
times during the year and Performance Review Meetings were held monthly.

The Directors are responsible for the formulation of the Company’s business strategy and in ensuring the existence of an
adequate risk management framework. The Non-Executive Directors bring independent judgment to bear on issues of
strategy and performance. The Board is satisfied with the effectiveness of the system of internal control in the Company
for the period up to the date of signing the Financial Statements. The Board holds responsibility for ensuring that the
senior management team possesses the relevant skills and expertise required in the management of the Company and
that a suitable succession planning strategy is in place. Directors also ensure adherence to laws and regulations
pertaining to the functioning of the organization. The Finance Manager functions as the Compliance Officer to ensure
compliance with all regulatory and statutory requirements and proper reporting of all compliance matters to the Board.

The Company has three Non-Executive Directors on its board as required by Listing Rule No. 7.10.1 (a). It is also in
compliance with Rule 7.10.2 (a) which requires two or one third of the Non-Executive Directors (whichever is higher) to
be independent.

All three Independent Non-Executive Directors on the Board have submitted a declaration of their independence as
required by Listing Rule 7.10.2 (b). The Non-Executive Directors do not qualify as independent against the criteria set out
in the Listing Rules because they are Directors of other companies in which a majority of the other Directors of the
Company are employed or are Directors. However, the Board is of the opinion that this does not affect their independence
as they do not have a business relationship or a significant shareholding in either Kelsey Developments PLC or other
associate companies of which they are Directors.

The Audit and Remuneration Committees of Dunamis Capital PLC have responsibility over Kelsey Developments PLC as
permitted by the CSE Listing Rules. Four Audit Committee meetings and one Remuneration Committee meeting were held
during the year.



KELSEY DEVELOPMENTS PLC

Annual Report   2013/2014

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (cont.)CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (cont.)CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (cont.)CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (cont.)CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (cont.)

11

The Remuneration Committee comprises of two Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Eardley Perera and Mr. Nihara Rodrigo. The
remuneration policy of the Company is designed to attract and retain high calibre executives and motivate them to
develop and implement the strategic plan to optimise returns to shareholders.

The Audit Committee comprises of two Non-Executive Directors Mr. Nihara Rodrigo and Mr. Chandana de Silva.
Mr. Chandana de Silva is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. The primary function of the
Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, primarily through:

• Overseeing management’s conduct of the Group’s financial reporting process and systems of internal accounting
and financial controls;

• Monitoring the independence and performance of the Group’s external auditors; and

• Providing an avenue of communication among the Internal Auditors, External Auditors, Management and the
Board.

Adequate follow-up action is initiated on audit recommendations to ensure that there is a continuous strengthening of
internal processes and controls.

KHL Corporate Services Limited serves as the Company Secretaries to Kelsey Developments PLC. The Company Secretaries
ensures compliance with Board procedures, the Companies Act, Securities and Exchange Commission and Colombo
Stock Exchange regulations. The Company Secretaries keeps the Board informed of relevant new regulations and
requirements.
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Composition

The Audit Committee of the parent Dunamis Capital PLC functions as the Audit Committe of Kelsey Developments PLC.
It is comprised of two Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company and is chaired by Mr. Chandana L. De Silva.

The other member of the Board appointed Audit Committee is Mr. Nihara E. Rodrigo.

Mr. De Silva is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales and in Sri Lanka and holds a
degree in Mathematics and Management from the University of London. He possesses wide experience in the finance
field and has served in leading companies in UK and Sri Lanka.

Mr. Rodrigo’s professional career spans over 30 years with diverse expertise in fields including different aspects of law
and e-commerce.

Meetings

Four audit committee meetings were held during the financial year 2013/14. The Managing Director, Executive Director,
Finance Manager and external Auditor have attended the meetings by invitation. The proceedings of the Audit Committee
meetings are reported to the Board of Directors on a regular basis.

Functions

The primary function of the Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, primarily
through:

· reviewing quarterly accounts and Management’s conduct of the Group’s financial reporting process and systems
of internal accounting and financial controls;

· monitoring the independence and performance of the Group’s external auditors; and
· providing an avenue of communication among the external auditors, Management and the Board.

Financial Reporting System

The Committee reviewed the financial reporting system adopted by the Company with particular reference to the
following;

· the preparation, presentation and adequacy of the disclosures in the Company’s annual and interim financial
statements in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 and other
applicable statutes.

· the rationale and basis for the significant estimates and judgments underlying the financial statements.

Internal Audit

The Company’s Internal Audit function has been outsourced to M/s B.R.De Silva & Co. Control weaknesses highlighted in
the internal audit reports were examined by the Committee and follow up actions taken by the management based on the
audit recommendations were reviewed. The Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the internal audit function and the
scope and procedures for internal audit during the ensuing year.

External Audit

The External Auditors’ management letter pertaining to the previous year’s audit and the management’s response thereto
were discussed during the year. Follow up action taken by management to ensure that the recommendations contained
in the management letter were implemented was reviewed. Further, the draft annual financial statements for 2013/14
were reviewed with the external Auditors prior to release.

The Committee reviewed the non-audit services provided by the auditors to ensure that the provision of these services
does not impair their independence.

The fees payable to the Auditors were recommended by the Committee to the Board for approval.

The Audit Committee has further recommended to the Board of Directors that Messrs Ernst & Young be re-appointed as
Auditors for the financial year ending 31 March 2015, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting.

Chandana L De Silva (Mr.)
Chairperson – Audit Committee

18 July 2014
Colombo

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORTAUDIT COMMITTEE REPORTAUDIT COMMITTEE REPORTAUDIT COMMITTEE REPORTAUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
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The identification and management of risk is integral to the Group’s strategy and to achieving its long-term goals. The
Board has overall responsibility for the management of risk and for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control and risk management approach. We believe that good risk management is fundamental to good business
management and that our success as an organization depends on our ability to identify and then exploit key
opportunities whilst minimising risk. Successful businesses manage risks in a considered, structured, controlled and
effective way.

The Company faces numerous challenges in its operational environment and it is critical that these risks are clearly
identified and prompt precautionary action taken. Risks are identified at strategic level and at operational level.

Risks identified at the strategic level include business risks and statutory risks. Business risk is the risk that the
Company may not be able to achieve its business objectives. Business risk may arise if the Company’s strategy is not
Compatible with market or customer requirements, or with socio economic/ political parameters. The Company’s
strategic plans and annual budgets are reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors annually. Risks are identified
and action plans drawn up. Actual performance against targets and any deviations from set objectives and agreed
actions are reviewed at the monthly performance review meetings and Directors provide required guidance to the
management team. The external environment is constantly reviewed by the Board of Directors and management team to
identify the factors which may prevent the Company from achieving its objectives.

Regulatory risk may arise if the Company is not able to comply with regulatory requirements which may change from
time to time, or is not compliant with existing regulations. The Finance Manager functions as the Compliance Officer to
ensure compliance with all regulatory and statutory requirements and proper reporting of all compliance matters to the
Board. Quarterly compliance reports are prepared and submitted to the Board for review.

Risks identified at the operational level include socio economic and political risk, reputational risk, human resources
risk and fraud risk.

Socio economic and political factors affect Company business when it affects the decision-making of customers.
Potential customers might reconsider investing in housing and real estate when the economic and political environment
is not stable. This matter is constantly discussed both at management and Board level and the Company has taken steps
to maintain a higher product portfolio targeting different segments of customers in order to mitigate this risk. Inflation
is another variable that comes under this risk. This is discussed by the Board and management has taken steps to
consider inflationary factors when making pricing and purchasing decisions.

Human resource risk is the risk faced by the Company due to lack of trained, experienced and qualified staff and loss of
staff due to various reasons. Management has taken action to address this risk by ensuring the recruitment and
retention of quality staff, providing training where necessary, and ensuring that remuneration is in line with industry
norms.

Reputational risk is the occurrences that will adversely affect the image and the goodwill of the Company. The Board of
Directors are mindful of this risk and management takes stringent steps in ensuring that the properties selected for
purchase are free from title or other defects and that the properties advertised for sale are properly and honestly
represented to prospective customers.

Fraud risk is the risk arising due to intentional misappropriations of assets and/or misrepresentation of facts to obtain
a financial or non-financial gain. Adequate internal controls and operational guide-lines, with defined authority levels
minimize this risk.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTINDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTINDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTINDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTINDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KELSEY DEVELOPMENTS PLC

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kelsey Developments PLC (“Company”),
the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, which comprise the
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and the statements of comprehensive income,
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit. We therefore believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, so far as appears from our examination, the Company maintained proper accounting
records for the year ended 31 March 2014 and the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
Company’s financial position as at 31 March 2014 and the financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (((((ContContContContCont.).).).).)

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
as at 31 March 2014 and the financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, of the Company and its Subsidiaries dealt with
thereby, so far as concerns the shareholders of the Company.

Without qualifying our opinion we draw attention to Note 2.1.3 to the financial statements, in relation
to Kelsey Property Developers (Private) Limited, Kelsey Homes Limited and Kelsey Aluminium (Private)
Limited, subsidiaries of Kelsey Developments PLC.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, Kelsey Property Developers (Private) Limited generated a net
profit of Rs. 152,974,644/- (2013 - net loss of Rs. 52,699,895/-) and as of that date the Company’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 48,209,886/- (2013 - Rs. 195,603,532/-) and the
company had a negative net assets position of Rs. 39,819,238/- (2013 - Rs. 192,932,865/-). These
factors raise doubt that the company will be able to continue as a going concern.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, Kelsey Homes Limited incurred a net loss of Rs. 13,954,832/-
(2013 - Rs. 2,425,603/-). The accumulated loss as at the reporting date was Rs. 37,001,808/- (2013 -
Rs. 13,317,800/-) and as at the reporting date the company’s current assets were sufficient to cover
its current liabilities. Net assets as at the reporting date stood at a positive value of Rs. 587,998,192/-
(2013 - Rs. 11,682,200/-). However, continuous losses raise doubt that the company will be able to
continue as a going concern.

In relation to Kelsey Aluminium (Private) Limited, we draw attention to Note 2.1.3 in these financial
statements which disclose the fact that the company’s financial statements have been prepared and
presented on a basis other than as a going concern.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

These financial statements also comply with the requirements of Sections 151(2) and 153(2) to 153(7)
of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

18 July 2014
Colombo
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITIONSTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITIONSTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITIONSTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITIONSTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Group Company

As at 31 March 2014 2013 2014 2013
Note  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3         4,148,298         2,240,398                 1,795               17,036
Long Term Investments 4                        -                        -       11,682,199       11,682,199
Trade and Other Receivables 6       10,000,157         5,354,783                        -                        -

      14,148,455         7,595,181       11,683,994       11,699,235
Current Assets
Inventories 5     637,094,103     364,313,453                        -                        -
Trade and Other Receivables 6       45,806,164       14,053,336                 5,376         1,932,313
Short Term Investments 4     155,825,261             201,955                        -                        -
Amounts Due from Related Parties 7                        -                        -     214,781,076     232,562,668
Income Tax Recoverable         1,108,302         2,323,974             186,010             186,010
Cash and Cash Equivalents         6,449,662         1,281,634             219,798             204,994

    846,283,492     382,174,352     215,192,260     234,885,985
Total Assets     860,431,947     389,769,533     226,876,254     246,585,220

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
Stated Capital 9     232,390,325     232,390,325     232,390,325     232,390,325
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 9     600,000,000                        -                        -                        -
Other Reserves 10         7,500,000         7,500,000         7,500,000         7,500,000
Capital Reserves 11       15,000,000       15,000,000                        -                        -
Retained Earnings     (71,849,637)   (198,396,589)     (16,863,123)        (6,708,477)
Total Equity     783,040,688       56,493,736     223,027,202     233,181,848

Non-Current Liabilities
Defined Benefit Obligations 12         3,596,750         3,418,878         3,243,250         3,148,577

        3,596,750         3,418,878         3,243,250         3,148,577
Current Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables 13       65,052,757       41,648,782             225,829             266,200
Preference Share Dividend Payable 24         6,904,110                        -                        -                        -
Unclaimed Dividends             379,973             379,973             379,973 379,973
Amounts Due to Related Parties 14                        -                        -                        -         9,608,622
Income Tax Payable 22         1,457,669                 4,062                        -                        -
Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings 15                        -     287,824,102                        -                        -

      73,794,509     329,856,919             605,802 10,254,795
Total Equity and Liabilities 860,431,947 389,769,533     226,876,254 246,585,220

Net Assets per Ordinary Share (Rs.)                 10.50                    3.24                 12.80                 13.38

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 20 through 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

These financial statements are in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

(Sgd.)
Ramani Gunathilake
Finance Manager

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements.
Signed for and on behalf of the Board by:

(Sgd.) (Sgd.)
Dinesh Schaffter Eardley I. Perera
Managing Director Director

18 July 2014
Colombo
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STATEMENT OF  COMPREHENSIVE INCOMESTATEMENT OF  COMPREHENSIVE INCOMESTATEMENT OF  COMPREHENSIVE INCOMESTATEMENT OF  COMPREHENSIVE INCOMESTATEMENT OF  COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

                                        Group                                         Company
Year ended 31 March  2014  2013  2014  2013

Note  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.

Revenue 16       95,611,890      231,485,137                        -                        -

Cost of Sales     (71,189,807)    (192,829,372)                        -                        -

Gross Profit       24,422,083        38,655,765                        -                        -

Other Income / Reversal of Impairment 17     177,262,502              950,579                        -     124,500,000

Selling and Distribution Expenses        (1,128,167)         (1,127,980)                        -                        -

Administrative Expenses     (48,886,396)      (49,193,058)           (807,398)           (530,954)

Other Expenses 18        (3,569,292)                         -        (9,347,248)     (13,317,801)

Finance Expenses 19     (10,355,538)      (45,378,240)                        -                        -

Finance Income 20       14,409,575          1,164,099                        -                        -

Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation 21     152,154,767      (54,928,835)     (10,154,646)     110,651,245

Income Tax Expenses 22     (16,017,622)            (430,533)                        -                        -

Profit/(Loss) After Taxation     136,137,145      (55,359,368)     (10,154,646)     110,651,245

Other Comprehensive Income                        -                         -                        -                        -

Actuarial Gain/ (Loss)             313,917            (111,283) - -

Total Comprehensive Income     136,451,062      (55,470,651)     (10,154,646)     110,651,245

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share - Basic 23 7.41 (3.18)                  (0.58)                    6.35

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 20 through 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITYSTATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITYSTATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITYSTATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITYSTATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GROUP

Cumulative
Stated Redeemable Other  Capital  Retained  Total

 Capital  Preference Shares Reserves  Reserves  Earnings
 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. Rs.

As at 1 April 2012 232,390,325 - 7,500,000 15,000,000 (142,925,938)    111,964,387

Total Comprehensive Income - - - - (55,470,651)   (55,470,651)

As at 1 April 2013  232,390,325                          -   7,500,000   15,000,000  (198,396,589)      56,493,736

Total Comprehensive Income                      -                             -                  -                    -    136,451,062   136,451,062

Issue of Cumulative Preference Shares                      -        600,000,000                  -                    -                        -   600,000,000

Stamp Duty on Preference Share Issue                      -                             -                  -                    -       (3,000,000)      (3,000,000)

Preference Share Dividends                      -                       -                  -                    -       (6,904,110)      (6,904,110)

As at 31 March 2014  232,390,325      600,000,000   7,500,000   15,000,000    (71,849,637)   783,040,688

COMPANY
 Stated  Other  Retained  Total
 Capital  Reserves  Earnings

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.

As at 1 April 2012  232,390,325 7,500,000  (117,359,722)    122,530,603

Total Comprehensive Income                      -  - 110,651,245     110,651,245

As at 1 April 2013  232,390,325 7,500,000 (6,708,477)    233,181,848

Total Comprehensive Income                      - - (10,154,646)     (10,154,646)

As at 31 March 2014  232,390,325 7,500,000 (16,863,123)    223,027,202

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 20 through 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWSSTATEMENT OF CASH FLOWSSTATEMENT OF CASH FLOWSSTATEMENT OF CASH FLOWSSTATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

                                                                                                                                       Group                                    Company
For the year ended 31 March 2014 2013  2014  2013

                                                                                             Notes Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Profit/(Loss) before Income Tax Expenses 152,154,767     (54,928,835)     (10,154,646)    110,651,245

Adjustments for
Depreciation            744,796            472,617                        -                        -
Provision for Defined Benefit Obligations 1,056,089         892,141                        -                        -
Write off of Irrecoverable Tax 3,196,708                        -         1,920,248                        -
Provision for Amounts Due from Related Parties -                        -         7,427,000                        -
Reversal of Provision for Amounts Due from Related Parties -                        -                        -   (124,500,000)
Provision for Impairment of Investment -                        -                        -       13,317,801
Interest Income (14,409,575)       (1,164,099)                        -                        -
Finance Expenses 10,355,538       45,378,240                        -                        -

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 153,098,323       (9,349,936)           (807,398)           (530,954)

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (272,780,650)         5,484,405                        -                        -
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables (38,318,450)     (13,979,672)                 6,689                 2,688
(Increase)/Decrease in Amounts Due from Related Parties -            215,770       11,028,806       (9,367,041)
Increase/(Decrease) in Amounts Due to Related Parties -                        -       (9,608,622)       9,964,703
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables 8,779,173       28,669,048             (40,371)             (33,130)

Cash Generated from Operations (149,221,604)       11,039,615            579,104               36,266

Finance Expenses Paid (10,355,538)     (45,378,240)                        -                        -
Income Tax Paid -           (126,608)                        -                        -
Defined Benefit Plan - Cost Paid (564,300)                        -           (564,300)                        -

Net Cash From/(Used in) Operating Activities (160,141,442)     (34,465,233)               14,804               36,266

Cash Flows from/(Used in) Investing Activities
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment       (2,652,696)       (1,571,901)                        -                        -
Short Term Investments (155,623,306)             (15,186)                        -                        -
Interest Received 14,409,575         1,057,495                        -                        -

Net Cash From/(Used in) Investing Activities (143,866,427)           (529,592)                        -                        -

Cash Flows from/(Used in) Financing Activities
Proceeds from Issue of Preference Shares 600,000,000                        -                        -                        -
Stamp Duty on Issue of Preference Shares (3,000,000)                        -                        -                        -
Proceeds from Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings -    223,126,267                        -                        -
Repayment of Interest Bearing Loans  and Borrowings (287,589,825)   (195,600,607)                        -                        -

Net Cash Flows from/(Used in) Financing Activities 309,410,175       27,525,660                        -                        -

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,402,306       (7,469,165)               14,804               36,266

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 1,047,357         8,516,523            204,994            168,728
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year                         8         6,449,662         1,047,357            219,798            204,994

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 20 through 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1 General

Kelsey Developments PLC is a company incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The registered office of the
Company is located at No.02, Deal Place, Colombo 03.

1.2 Principal Activities and Nature of Operations

During the year, the principal activities of the Company were handling investments in subsidiaries, Kelsey Homes
Limited, Kelsey Property Developers (Private) Limited and Kelsey Aluminium (Private) Limited.

The principal activities of the subsidiary companies namely Kelsey Property Developers (Private) Limited and
Kelsey Homes Limited were construction, development and sale of lands, quality residential houses and
apartments and development and sale of land plots.

Kelsey Aluminium (Private) Limited has been non-operational since 01 April 2009.

1.3 Parent Enterprise and Ultimate Parent Enterprise

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company’s parent and ultimate parent and controlling party is Dunamis
Capital PLC, which is incorporated in Sri Lanka.

1.4 Date of Authorisation for Issue

The financial statements of Kelsey Developments PLC for the year ended 31 March 2014 were authorized for
issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 18 July 2014.

2. GENERAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements of Kelsey Developments PLC (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“Group”) have been prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, as issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA Sri Lanka).

The preparation and presentation of these financial statements is in compliance with the requirements of
the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

2.1.1 Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis unless otherwise indicated and
presented in Sri Lankan Rupees.

2.1.2 Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Kelsey Developments PLC and its
subsidiaries as at 31 March each year. Refer Note 4.1.1 for the subsidiaries (wholly owned) of the Company.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using consistent accounting policies.

All intra group balances, transactions, income, expenses, profits and losses resulting from intra group
transactions are eliminated in full.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1.3  Going Concern of Subsidiaries

(a) Kelsey Homes Limited

The financial statements are prepared on the assumption that the company is a going concern i.e. as
continuing in operations for the foreseeable future.

During the year the company incurred a net loss of Rs.13,954,832/- (2013 – Rs. 2,425,603/-). The accumulated
loss as at reporting date was Rs.37,001,808/- (2013 – Rs.13,317,800/-).

However, following an infusion of Rs.600,000,000/- as preference shares by Dunamis Capital PLC on 25
February 2014, the company’s current assets exceeded its current liabilities by Rs.582,595,684/-
(2013 – Rs.7,045,024/-) and net assets stood at Rs.587,998,192/- (2013 – Rs.11,682,200/-).

During the year the company invested approximately Rs.600,000,000/- in land inventories
(2013 – approximately Rs.100,000,000/-) and launched a housing project with 100 houses. Investment on
construction of houses and common facilities has been estimated to exceed Rs.700,000,000/- with expected
gross profit of more than Rs.300,000,000/- over a two year period.

In addition to the above, the parent entity, Kelsey Developments PLC is committed to assist the company in
providing all necessary financial support to enable the company to meet its obligations as they fall due and
to continue the operations of the company as a going concern.

Taking these circumstances into consideration the Directors are confident of the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

(b) Kelsey Property Developers (Private) Limited

The financial statements are prepared on the assumption that the company is a going concern i.e. as
continuing in operations for the foreseeable future.

During the year the company generated a net profit of Rs.152,974,644/- (2013 – net loss of Rs.52,699,895/-). As
at 31 March 2014 the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs.48,209,866/-
(2013 – Rs.195,603,532/-) and the company had a negative net assets position of Rs.39,819,238/-
(2013 – Rs.192,932,865/-) which reflected a substantial improvement.

During the year the company disposed of inventories valued at Rs.317,542,092/-(2013–Rs.50,261,812/-).

In addition to the above, the parent entity, Kelsey Developments PLC is committed to assist the company in
providing all necessary financial support to enable the company, to meet its obligations as they fall due and
to continue the operations of the Company as a going concern.

Taking these circumstances into consideration the Directors are confident of the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern and have no plans to liquidate the entity in the foreseeable future.

(c) Kelsey Aluminium (Private) Limited

The Company has been non-operational since 01 April 2009 and shareholders have passed a resolution
on 13 January 2014 to liquidate the Company under a creditors’ voluntary winding-up.

The Board of Directors have decided to prepare these financial statements on a basis other than as a going
concern following the cessation of operations. It has also been resolved by Kelsey Developments PLC that in
the event the Company is unable to meet all its liabilities from the amounts realised from its assets that such
amount will be borne by Kelsey Developments PLC.

Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on a basis more fully explained in this note
reflecting that the going concern assumption has not been adopted in preparing these financial statements.
Consequently, adjustments have been made to provide for the diminution in value of all fixed assets so as to
reduce their carrying value to their estimated realisable amount, and to reclassify fixed assets and long-term
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities.
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The financial statements are prepared using the following basis.

• Property, Plant and Equipment and trade and other receivables stated at the lower of cost and recoverable
amount.  Potential unrealised gains on disposal are not taken into consideration.

• Provisions have been made for further liabilities that may arise.
• Prepayments are expensed unless they represent a future cash refund, in which case it was reclassified as

receivables.
• The financial statements include only the estimated tax liability that may arise.

2.2 Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements of the Group require the management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions, which may affect the amounts of income, expenditure, assets and liabilities at the end of the
reporting period. In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, the key assumptions made relating
to the future and the sources of estimation at the reporting date together with the related judgments that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below:

Policy Note
Deferred Tax 2.3.10  (b) 22.2
Inventories – Allowance for Obsolete and Slow Moving Items 2.3.2 5
Trade and Other Receivables 2.3.4.1 6
Amounts Due from Related Parties 2.3.4.1 7
Impairment – Investments in Subsidiaries 2.3.6 4
Impairment – Other Investments 2.3.4.1 4
Going Concern of Subsidiaries 2.1.3 -

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Group in preparing its financial statements:

2.3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment
and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts
as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
the profit or loss as incurred.

The Group provides depreciation from the date the assets are available for use up to the date of disposal, at the
following rates on a straight line basis over the periods appropriate to the useful lives based on the pattern in
which the asset’s future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Group. Depreciation of an asset
ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale or the date that the asset is
derecognised. Depreciation does not cease when the asset becomes idle or is retired from active use, unless the
asset is fully depreciated.

Asset Type Useful Life
Motor Vehicles 05 Years
Furniture and Fittings 08 Years
Office Equipment 06 Years
Computer Equipment 05 Years
Plant and Machinery 02-10 Years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

of comprehensive income, when the asset is derecognized.
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2.3.2 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, after making due allowances for obsolete
and slow moving items. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price at which inventories can be sold in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the
sale.

The costs incurred in bringing inventories to its present location and condition, are accounted for as follows:

Contract work in progress        - This cost represent the amounts due from customer for uncertified
work and measured at actual cost incurred.

2.3.3 Investments

In the parent company financial statements non-current investments are stated at cost net of impairment losses
which are charged to the comprehensive income.

2.3.4 Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement

2.3.4.1 Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets within the scope of LKAS 39 are classified as loans and receivables, available-for-sale
financial assets, held to maturity or fair value through profit or loss as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus transaction costs, in the case of assets not at fair
value through profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank balances, trade and other receivables, amounts due from
inter companies and other financial assets.

Subsequent Measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as described below:

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and Other Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method, less impairment. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the income statement.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired
if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Assets Carried at Amortised Cost

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement. The assets are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write off is later recovered, the recovery
is credited to the income statement.

DEVELO 2.3.4.2 Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of LKAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, bank overdrafts, loans and borrowings,
amounts due to inter companies and other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, directly
attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent Measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the Effective Interest Rate method (EIR) amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. Such techniques may include:

· Using recent arm’s length market transactions
· Reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same
· A discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.

2.3.5 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, demand deposits and short term highly liquid
investments, readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of the above net of outstanding
bank overdrafts.
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2.3.6 Impairment of Non Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is higher of asset’s or cash generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

2.3.7 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Group expects some
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of comprehensive income net of any reimbursement.

2.3.8 Post Employment Benefit

a) Defined Benefit Plan – Gratuity

Gratuity is a Defined Benefit Plan. The group annually measures the present value of the promised retirement
benefits for gratuity, which is a Defined Benefit Plan. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefits
plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.
Gains or losses arising as a results of changes in assumptions are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
in the period in which it arises.
The Gratuity liability is not funded or actuarially valued. These items are grouped under Defined benefit
Liability in the statement of financial position.

The gratuity liability is not externally funded.

b) Defined Contribution Plans – Employees’ Provident Fund and Employees’ Trust Fund

Employees are eligible for Employees’ Provident Fund Contributions and Employees’ Trust Fund Contributions
in line with the respective statutes and regulations. The Group contributes 12% and 3% of gross emoluments of
employees to Employees’ Provident Fund and Employees’ Trust Fund respectively.

2.3.9 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of
payment and excluding taxes or duty.

Sale of Land
Revenue from sale of land is recognized only when the risk and rewards pertaining to the land is transferred
to the customers.

Rendering of Services
Revenue from rendering of services is recognized by reference to the stage of completion. Stage of completion is
measured by reference to the work certified by the Chief Engineer.

Interest Income
Interest Income is recognised as the interest accrues, taking into account the effective interest rate of the asset.
Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of comprehensive income.

Other Income
Net gains and losses of a revenue nature on the disposal of property, plant and equipment and other assets have
been accounted for in the statement of comprehensive income, having deducted from proceeds on disposal, the
carrying amount of the assets and related selling expenses.
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2.3.10 Taxation

(a) Current Income Taxes

Kelsey Developments PLC, Kelsey Property Developers (Private) Limited and Kelsey Aluminium (Private)
Limited

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Kelsey Homes Limited

Pursuant to agreement dated 06 August 2008, entered into with Board of Investment of Sri Lanka, under section
17 of the Board of Investment Law No.4 of 1978, the company is exempt from Income Tax on the business of
Construction of Housing Units for sale or lease for a period of 5 years, reckoned from the year in which the
company commence to make profit or any year of assessment not later than two (02) years reckoned from the
date of commencement of commercial operation, whichever is earlier as may be specified in a certificate issued
by the Board. Accordingly the tax exemption period has expired on 06 August 2013.

b) Deferred Taxation

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except where the deferred
income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused
tax assets and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses
can be utilised except where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Group has not recognised deferred tax assets or liabilities at the reporting date taking into consideration the
continued tax losses incurred by the group companies. Refer Note 22.2.

2.3.11 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, except to the extent
where borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of an asset that takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale, are capitalized as part of that asset.
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2.3.12 Dividend Distribution

The Group recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to owners of equity when the
distribution is authorised and is no longer at the discretion of the Company. A corresponding amount is
recognised directly in equity.

2.3.13 Segmental Reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segments) or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment
(geographical segments) which are subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

There are no distinguishable components to be identified as a segment as all operations are treated as one
segment. Further, Kelsey Aluminium (Private) Limited which engaged in fabrication and installation of
aluminium products was non-operational since 01 April 2009.

2.4 Risk Management Policies

Financial Risk Management Policies
The identification and managing of financial risk is integral to group policies. The Group financial liabilities
comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. The main purpose of the financial liabilities is
to provide support to its operations. The Group’s statement of financial position includes trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents as financial assets.

The Group is exposed to operational risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The management of the Group has
identified the mitigation of these risks and agreed on policies for managing each of these risks which are
summarized below:

Operational Risk
Operational risk arises from deficiencies in systems and processes leading to sub-optimal decisions. Key risks
arise in regard to the purchase and sale of land and property. Every prospective purchase is rigorously
evaluated to ensure that the project meets the Group’s minimum criteria. Prior to purchase feasibility reports
are prepared to evaluate saleability and profitability, comprehensive legal checks are carried out on title, and
approvals are obtained from the relevant local authorities.

Credit Risk
A risk on non-payment of capital and interest by the customer can be identified as a credit risk. An evaluation
of the client’s ability to pay is carried out and the risk is further mitigated by the title to the property being
retained by the Group until payments are settled in full.

Liquidity Risk
In order to ensure that the Group has adequate financial resources to meet its obligations, project borrowings
are structured based on an assessment of project turn-around time. Borrowing facilities are in place to meet
other short term requirements that may arise from time to time.

2.5 Effects of Sri Lanka Accounting Standards Issued but not Yet Effective

The Following SLFRS have been issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka that have an
effective date in the future and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. Those SLRFS will
have an effect on the accounting policies currently adopted by the Group and may have an impact on the future
financial Statements.

i. SLFRS 9 – Financial Instruments : Classification and Measurement
SLFRS 9, as issued reflects the first phase of work on replacement of LKAS 39 and applies to classification
and measurement of financial assets and liabilities.
This standard was originally effective for the periods commencing on or after 01 January 2015. However
effective date has been deferred subsequently.

ii. SLFRS 13 – Fair Value Measurement
SLFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under SLFRS for all fair value measurements. SLFRS 13
provides guidance on all faire value measurements under SLFRS.

This Standard will be effective for the financial period beginning on or after 01 January 2014. However use
of principles of measurement in this standards are recommended.

In addition to the above, following standards will also be effective for the periods commencing on or after
01 January 2014.
SLRFS 10 – Consolidated Financial Statements
SLFRS 11 – Join Arrangements
SLFRS 12 – Disclosure of the Interest in Other Entities

The group will adopt these standards when they become effective. Pending the completion of detailed review,
the financial impact is not reasonably estimable as at the date of publication of these financial statements.
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i) During the financial year, the Company removed from its  assets register fully depreciated  Property, Plant and Equipment
amounting to Rs. 12,365,300/-.

ii) Property, Plant and Equipment includes fully depreciated assets having a gross carrying amount of Rs.16,065,995/-
(2013 - Rs. 11,519,109/-).

3. PROPERTY PLANT & EQUIPMENT

3.1   Group
Motor Computer Furniture Fixtures Office Plant and Total

Vehicles Equipment and Fittings Equipment Machinery
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cost
As at 1 April 2013 5,903,499     9,532,050                 3,013,152    2,567,260  1,007,831    22,023,793
Additions -         732,800                    907,749    1,012,147                 -       2,652,696
Disposals/ Transfers -    (7,053,448)               (2,555,677)  (2,182,535)    (838,942)   (12,630,602)
As at 31 March 2014 5,903,499     3,211,402                 1,365,224    1,396,872      168,889    12,045,886

Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1 April 2013 5,493,311     8,392,351                 2,603,353    2,412,876      881,503    19,783,394
Charge for the year 170,189         313,499                       68,303       111,943        80,862          744,796
Disposals/ Transfers -    (7,053,448)               (2,555,677)  (2,182,535)    (838,942)   (12,630,602)
As at 31 March 2014 5,663,500     1,652,402                    115,978       342,284      123,423       7,897,588

Net Book Value
As at 31 March 2014 239,999     1,559,000                 1,249,245    1,054,588        45,466       4,148,298
As at 31 March 2013 410,188     1,139,699                    409,799       154,384      126,328       2,240,398

3.2   Company
Motor Computer Furniture Fixtures Office Plant and Total

Vehicles Equipment and Fittings Equipment Machinery
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cost
As at 1 April 2013 3,275,787     7,403,948                 2,613,152    2,155,348      828,827    16,277,062
Additions -                    -                                -                    -                 -                      -
Disposals/ Transfers  -    (6,825,448)               (2,555,677)  (2,155,348)    (828,827)   (12,365,300)
As at 31 March 2014 3,275,787         578,500                       57,475                    -                 -       3,911,762

Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1 April 2013 3,275,787     7,403,948                 2,600,066    2,154,298      825,927    16,260,026
Charge for the year  -                    -                       11,291            1,050          2,900            15,241
Disposals/ Transfers -    (6,825,448)               (2,555,677)  (2,155,348)    (828,827)   (12,365,300)
As at 31 March 2014 3,275,787         578,500                       55,680                    -                 -       3,909,967

Net Book Value
As at 31 March 2014 -                    -                         1,795                    -                 -               1,795
As at 31 March 2013 -                    -                       13,086            1,050          2,900            17,036

i) During the financial year, the Group acquired Property, Plant and Equipment for cash amounting to Rs. 2,652,696/-
(2013 - Rs. 1,571,901/-).

ii) During the financial year, the Group removed from its  assets register fully depreciated  Property, Plant and Equipment
amounting to Rs. 12,630,602/-.

iii) Property, Plant and Equipment includes fully depreciated assets having a gross carrying amount of Rs.5,809,218 (2013
- Rs. 18,439,820/-).
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4. INVESTMENTS
                                  Group                                      Company

2014 2013 2014 2013
Summary Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Long Term Investments 4.1                       -                      - 11,682,199    11,682,199
Short Term Investments 4.2 155,825,261         201,995                                -                                   -

            155,825,261              201,995 11,682,199    11,682,199

                                  Group                                      Company
4.1 Long Term Investments 2014 2013 2014 2013

Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Investments In Subsidiaries 4.1.1                       -                      - 11,682,199    11,682,199
Other Equity Investments 4.1.2 -                        -                                -                                   -

                      -                      - 11,682,199    11,682,199

4.1.1 Investment in Subsidiaries                                                                              No. of hares                                Company
Non Quoted Holding % 2014 2013 2014 2013

Rs. Rs.

Kelsey Homes Limited 100%  250,000  250,000 25,000,000 25,000,000
Kelsey Property Developers (Private) Limited 100% 2,000,000  2,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
Kelsey Aluminium (Private) Limited 100%  500,000    500,000 5,000,000 5,000,000

35,000,000 35,000,000
Less: Impairment for Fall in Value

Kelsey Homes Limited  (13,317,801)    (13,317,801)
Kelsey Property Developers (Private) Limited (5,000,000) (5,000,000)
Kelsey Aluminium (Private) Limited  (5,000,000) (5,000,000)

11,682,199 11,682,199

4.1.2 Other Equity Investments                           Group                                    Company
Non Quoted              No. of  Shares 2014 2013 2014 2013

2014 2013 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Keells Agro Products Limited     145,000      145,000     1,450,000     1,450,000  1,450,000  1,450,000
Provision for Fall in Value of Investments  (1,450,000)   (1,450,000)  (1,450,000) (1,450,000)

- - - -

145,000 shares in Keells Agro Products Limited have been fully provided as the diminution in value is considered to
be permanent.

                                                                                                    Group                                        Company
4.2 Short Term Investments        Relationship 2014 2013 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

First Capital Limited           Affiliate 67,704,329 -                     -                    -
Dunamis Capital PLC            Parent 88,120,932 - - -
Fixed Deposits -          201,955 -                     -

155,825,261          201,955 -                     -

                                                                                                    Group                                         Company
5. INVENTORIES 2014 2013 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Real Estate Stock 7,445,480  364,203,453 -                     -
Work-in-Progress 629,538,623 849,928 -                     -
Raw Materials and Components - 527,949 -                     -
Consumables 110,000 110,000 -                     -

637,094,103  365,691,330 -                     -
Less: Provision for Slow Moving Inventories -     (1,377,877) -                     -

637,094,103 364,313,453 -                     -

The substantial increase in work-in-progress is primarily due to the on-going development of a 100 house
gated community  project in Mount Lavinia.

In May 2013, a property jointly held by Kelsey Property Developers (Private) Limited, a subsidiary and two
affiliate companies did not qualify to continue as inventory. This was due to the subsidiary’s inability to
develop, block out and sell the land in the ordinary course of its business due to circumstances outside its
control. The said subsidiary, subsequently relinquished its rights in this property to its co-owner and ultimate
parent Dunamis Capital PLC realizing a profit of Rs.177,262,502/- which has been recognised as Other Income.

5.2

5.1
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                                                                                                          Group                                              Company
6. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2014 2013 2014 2013

                                                                  Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Trade Receivables - Non Current 10,000,157       5,354,783                         -                       -
                                             -  Current 52,952,883    47,229,514       15,248,821     15,248,821

Less: Provisions for Doubtful Debts     6.1    (41,660,152)   (41,660,152)      (15,248,821)    (15,248,821)
                                                                    6.2     21,292,888    10,924,145                         -                       -
Other Receivables 27,643,415       1,122,626                         -                       -
Less: Provisions for Other Receivables  (1,122,626)     (1,122,626)                         -                       -

47,813,677    10,924,145                         -                       -

Advances and Prepayments 7,992,644       8,483,974                  5,376        1,932,313
55,806,321    19,408,119                  5,376        1,932,313

Current/Non-current classification of Trade Receivables  is based on the settlement plans agreed with customers.

                                                                                                        Group                                 Company
6.1 Movement of Provision for Doubtful Debts Individually Total Individually Total

Impaired Impaired
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

As at 1 April 2013 41,660,152    41,660,152       15,248,821     15,248,821
Charge for the Year - - - -
As at 31 March 2014 41,660,152    41,660,152       15,248,821     15,248,821

6.2 As at 31 March the Ageing Analysis of Trade Receivables is as follows:

             Past Due Not Impaired
Neither Past Due  < 30  31-60  61-90  91-120

Total Nor Impaired  Days  Days  Days  Days
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

2014              21,292,888 19,295,267 477,134          467,778          451,299           601,410
2013              10,924,145 10,164,686 343,342          281,172 134,945 -

7. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES                                        Company
2014 2013

Relationship Rs. Rs.

Kelsey Homes Limited Subsidiary     129,831,435                       -
Kelsey Property Developers (Private) Limited Subsidiary     107,894,914   248,080,941
Kelsey Aluminium (Private) Limited Subsidiary          9,081,442        9,242,321

246,807,790   257,323,262
Less: Impairment
Kelsey Property Developers (Private) Limited   (22,945,273)    (15,518,273)
Kelsey Aluminium (Private) Limited (9,081,442)      (9,242,321)

214,781,076 232,562,668

(i) Kelsey Property Developers (Private) Limited settled a substantial part of its amount payable following
the sale of its property in Nuwara Eliya.

(ii) Amounts due from Kelsey Homes Limited are in relation to fund transfers  made by the parent company
for the  new project in Mount Lavinia.
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8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
                                                                                                   Group                                    Company

2014 2013 2014 2013
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cash and Bank Balances 6,449,662         1,281,634             219,798             204,994
Bank Overdraft -           (234,277)                        -                        -
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents for the
purpose of Cash Flow Statement         6,449,662         1,047,357             219,798             204,994

9. STATED CAPITAL 2014 2014 2013 2013
                                                              Note Number Rs. Number Rs.

Fully Paid Ordinary Shares 17,429,274     232,390,325       17,429,274     232,390,325
Fully Paid Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares                                 9.1 6,000,000     600,000,000                        -                        -

23,429,274 832,390,325 17,429,274 232,390,325

9.1 Fully Paid Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares
Balance at Beginning of the year  -                        -                        -                        -
Issue of Shares for Cash 6,000,000     600,000,000                        -                        -
Balance at End of the year 6,000,000     600,000,000                        -                        -

9.2 Rights, Preference and Restrictions on Classes of Capital

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at a meeting of the Company.

On 25 February 2014, Dunamis Capital PLC  invested a sum of Rs. 600,000,000/-  in Kelsey Homes Limited on
6,000,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each .

According to the agreement entered into by Kelsey Homes Limited with Dunamis Capital PLC with regard to
preference shares, Kelsey Homes Limited shall:

1. Use the said funds so invested by Dunamis Capital PLC only for the development of a particular land and
premises referred to in the agreement.

2. Permit Dunamis Capital PLC to inspect the said development and also obtain accounts and details of monies
so utilized for the development of the particular land and premises referred to in the agreement.

3. Permit any auditor appointed by Dunamis Capital PLC to inspect the accounts of monies so utilized.

4. Invest with Dunamis Capital PLC all surplus monies  during the tenure of the agreement in instruments which
carry interest of  12% per annum.

5. Pay Dunamis Capital PLC 25% of profits generated from the said development and such payment shall be
made quarterly.

6 Have the option to seek redemption of the said preference shares at any time.

The holder of preference shares are entitled to a fixed dividend of 12% per annum which is cumulative. The
holder of preference shares are entitled to preferential treatment in payment of dividends over and above the
rights of holders of ordinary shares. The preference shares shall not however confer upon the holders of these
shares any right whatsoever to receive notice of and to attend or vote at any General Meeting of the Company.
Kelsey Homes Limited will have the option to seek redemption of the said redeemable preference shares at any
time.

31
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11. CAPITAL RESERVE                                                                                Group                                             Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

At the Beginning of the Year 15,000,000       15,000,000                        -                        -
At the End of the Year 15,000,000       15,000,000                        -                        -

This reserve was created during the year 2007 on the bonus issue made by Kelsey Property Developers (Private)
Limited.

                                                                                                               Group                                             Company
12. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 2014 2013 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

As at 1 April 3,418,878        2,415,454         3,148,576        2,196,335
Interest Charge for the Year 204,864           256,566             184,749           256,566
Gratuity Charge for the Year 851,225           635,575             768,625           584,392
Benefits Paid During the Year (564,300)                       -           (564,300)                       -
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss (313,917)           111,283           (294,400)           111,283
As at 31 March 3,596,750        3,418,878         3,243,250        3,148,576

The gratuity obligation is recognised in the Company accounts but as employees have been seconded to
subsidiaries, gratuity expenses are recognised in the respective subsidiary company accounts.

The key assumptions used in determining the cost of employee benefits were:

2013/2014 2012/2013

Rate of Interest:  10% 12%
Rate of Salary Increase:                  10% 10%
Retirement Age: 55 years 55 years

The results of sensitivity analysis are as follows:
                                                                                                          Group                             Company

Present Value Effect on Present Value Effect on
 of Defined Defined of Defined Defined

Benefit Benefit Benefit Benefit
Obligations Obligations Obligations Obligations

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Discount Rate
1% Less 3,747,785 151,035 3,356,392 113,142
1% More 3,457,124 (139,626) 3,135,297 (107,953)

Salary Escalation Rate
1% Less 3,455,891 (140,859) 3,134,329 (108,921)
1% More 3,746,368 149,618 3,355,349 112,099

13. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES                                                            Group                                   Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Advances Received 44,577,070     35,289,407                        -                       -
Provision for Contingent Tax Liability 14,800,275                       -                        -                       -
Retention Payable 3,227,741        3,792,222                        -                       -
Accrued Expenses and Sundry Creditors  2,447,671        2,567,153             225,829           266,200

65,052,757     41,648,782             225,829           266,200

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. OTHER RESERVES                                                                                  Group                                   Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

General Reserve 6,705,000         6,705,000         6,705,000         6,705,000
Repair Expenses Reserve 795,000             795,000             795,000             795,000

        7,500,000         7,500,000         7,500,000         7,500,000

The General Reserve is a revenue reserve which represents  amounts set aside  for general application.

The Repair Expenses Reserve is a reserve set aside  to meet any unexpected repair expenses in respect  of
houses built in previous years.
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14. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES                                              Group                                   Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

                                            Relationship Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Kelsey Homes  Limited      Subsidiary -                        - - 9,608,622
-                        - - 9,608,622

15. INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS Amount Amount 2014 2013
Repayable Repayable

within 1 year after 1 year Total Total
Group Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Loans from Related Parties                       -                       -                        -   287,589,825
Bank Overdraft                       -                       -                        -           234,277

-                       -                        -   287,824,102

15.1 Loans from Related Parties As at Loans As at
31.03.2013 Obtained Repayments 31.03.2014

                                                Relationship Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

First Capital Limited                  Affiliate     287,589,825                       -   (287,589,825)                       -
287,589,825                       -   (287,589,825)                   -

33

16. REVENUE                                                                                              Group                                  Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Revenue from Property Sales 88,928,428   221,859,622                        -                       -
Rendering Services  6,683,462        8,263,525                        -                       -
Commission Income on Land Sales                       -        1,361,990                        -                       -

95,611,890   231,485,137                        -                       -

                                                                                                              Group                                  Company
17. OTHER INCOME/ REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT 2014 2013 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Reversal of Impairment Provision -                       -                        -   124,500,000
Gain on Sale of Property 177,262,502                       -                        -                       -
Sundry Income -           506,500
Write back of Provision for Doubtful Debts -           444,079                        -                       -

 177,262,502           950,579                        -   124,500,000

On 31st May 2013, Kelsey Property Developers (Private) Limited  sold its undivided share (48/87) of  a property
in Nuwara Eliya to its ultimate parent company Dunamis Capital PLC for Rs.440,000,000 /- realising a gain  of
Rs.177,262,502/- .  This has been classified as Other Income since the company was unable to sell this land in
the course of the ordinary activities of the company due to unforeseen external circumstances which were
beyond the control of the company.

18. OTHER EXPENSES                                                                               Group                                  Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Provision for Amounts Due from Related Parties
      Kelsey Property Developers (Private) Limited  -                       -         7,427,000                       -
Write-off of VAT Receivable 1,920,248                       -         1,920,248                       -
ESC Foregone 1,276,460 - -                       -
Provision for Impairment of Investment
                                      Kelsey Homes Limited -                       -                        -     13,317,801
Other Expenses 372,584                       -                        -                       -

3,569,292                       -         9,347,248     13,317,801
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22. INCOME TAX EXPENSE                                                                                    Group                                  Company
2014  2013  2014  2013

Rs. Rs.  Rs.  Rs.

Current Tax on Ordinary Activities for the Year 1,457,669        255,436                    -                    -
Provision for Contingent Tax Liability 14,800,275                    -                    -                    -
Under/(Over) Provision of Tax in respect of Prior Year (240,322)        175,097                    -                    -

 16,017,622        430,533                    -                    -

                                                                                                                             Group                                                  Company
19. FINANCE EXPENSES 2014  2013  2014  2013

                                                                  Relationship Rs. Rs.  Rs.  Rs.
Interest Cost on Loans and Borrowings
    - First Capital Limited                          Affiliate  10,355,538  45,378,240                    -                    -

10,355,538  45,378,240                    -                    -

Group                                                  Company
20. FINANCE INCOME 2014  2013  2014  2013

                                                                  Relationship Rs. Rs.  Rs.  Rs.

Interest Income - Related Party
     - Dunamis Capital PLC                          Parent 6,342,202 - - -

                 - First Capital Limited                           Affiliate 1,657,834 - - -
Interest Income - Projects     6,400,403     1,087,179                    -                    -
Interest Income - Other             9,136          76,920                    -                    -

14,409,575     1,164,099                    -                    -

21. PROFIT/(LOSS)  FROM  OPERATING  ACTIVITIES                                      Group                                  Company
2014  2013  2014  203

Rs. Rs.  Rs.  Rs.

Profit/(Loss) before taxation is stated after
charging all expenses including the following:

Personnel Costs 19,766,201  21,416,530                    -                    -
Defined Contribution Plan Costs-EPF & ETF  2,626,087     3,686,145                    -                    -
Defined Benefit Plan Costs-Gratuity 1,056,089     989,219                    -                    -
Depreciation 744,796        472,617                    -                    -
Directors’ Emoluments -        600,000                    -                    -
Auditor’s Remuneration-Current Year 613,500        574,000        280,000        254,000
Legal Fees 568,498        848,185                    -                    -
Advertising 813,830        467,727                    -                    -
Commission 314,337        390,405                    -                    -
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22.1 Reconciliation Between Current Tax Expenses/Income and the product of Accounting Profit/(Loss)

                                                                                                                                  Group                                 Company
2014  2013  2014  2013

Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.

Accounting Profit/(Loss) Before Tax    152,154,767    (54,928,835)   (10,154,647)    110,651,245
Exempted Profit from BOI Company         2,998,430          (746,416)                      -                        -
Exempted Profit   (177,262,502)                        -                      -                        -
Expenses Disallowed for Tax         5,139,432    126,449,839       9,186,369       13,317,801
Allowed Expenses and Other Sources of Income       (9,183,470)  (124,601,336)                      -   (124,500,000)

(26,153,343)    (53,826,748)        (968,278)           (530,954)
Tax Losses Brought Forward and Utilised                        -                        -                      -                        -
Taxable Loss     (26,153,343)    (53,826,748)        (968,278)           (530,955)

Other Sources of Income         8,009,172         1,164,099                      -                        -
Tax Loss Utilised       (2,803,210)          (251,828)                      -                        -
Taxable Income         5,205,962            912,271                      -                        -

Current Income Tax Expense  -   28%         1,457,669            255,436                      -                        -
Provision for Contingent Tax Liability       14,800,275                        -                      -                        -

      16,257,944            255,436                      -                        -

22.2 A Deferred Tax Asset amounting to Rs. 57,161,364/- as at the year end has not been recognized by the Group as it
is not probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and
unused tax losses can be utilised.

23. EARNINGS/ (LOSS) PER SHARE

The Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the  Net Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to ordinary
shareholders  after deducting preference share dividends by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.

                                                                                                                              Group                                                 Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Amounts used as numerator
Profit/ (Loss) After Tax    136,137,145    (55,359,368)   (10,154,646)    110,651,245
Less- Preference Share Dividend       (6,904,110)                        -                      -                        -
Profit/ (Loss) Attributable to Ordinary Share Holders    129,233,035    (55,359,368)   (10,154,646)    110,651,245

Number of ordinary shares used as denominator: Number Number Number Number
Weighted Average Number of Shares in Issue       17,429,274      17,429,274    17,429,274       17,429,274

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share                   7.41                 (3.18)               (0.58)                   6.35

24. DIVIDENDS PER SHARE                                 Group
2014 2013

Rs. Rs.
24.1 Equity Dividends on Ordinary Shares :

Dividend for 2013/2014 :  Nil (2012/2013 : Nil) -                           -
 -                         -

24.2 Dividends on Preference Shares :
Dividend for 2013/2014 :  Rs. 12/- Per Share (Accrued proportionately )          6,904,110                          -

6,904,110 -

35
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25. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Subsequent to the reporting date, Kelsey Homes Limited,  a subsidiary of the Company obtained a term loan
amounting to Rs. 400,000,000/- from Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC, as part financing of a property in Mount
Lavinia. This amount is to be repaid in 30 monthly installments commencing one month from the disbursement.
A primary mortgage bond of Rs. 400,000,000/- was signed  with Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC over the said
property in Mount Lavinia against the loan obtained.

26. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

26.1 Capital Expenditure Commitments

There are no material commitments made by the Group as at year end. (2013 - None)

26.2 Financial Commitments

As per the  agreement between Dunamis Capital PLC and Kelsey Homes Limited (subsidiary), Kelsey Homes Limited
is liable to pay 25% of profits generated from  the property development in Mount Lavinia to Dunamis Capital PLC
and such payment shall be made quarterly.

26.3  Contingent Liabilities

Kelsey Developments PLC is one of the Defendants, on behalf of its clients, in a Partition Case to establish title
in respect of a property situated in Nawala. Based on legal advice, management is of the opinion that a loss is
not probable. Accordingly provision has not been made in the financial statements.

The Company provides a warranty period of 10 years for structural damages in constructions. Based on histori
cal trend ,the directors are of the view that no provision are required for potential claims under warranty.

There are no other contingent liabilities or litigations of a material nature.

 27. ASSETS PLEDGED

 Kelsey Property Developers (Private) Limited

 The following assets have been pledged as security for liabilities

 Nature of the assets  Nature of the Liabilities                                                       Carrying Amount Pledged
2014 2013

Rs. Rs.
 Inventories Primary Mortgage for Short term

Loan Obtained from First Capital Limited - 260,269,036
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28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

28.1 Transactions with the Parent and Related Entities
                                                                                              Parent Company                                   Subsidiaries                             Affiliates

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Company Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

As at 1 April -         -    247,714,640  247,348,488                       -               -
Fund Transfer Made  -         - 166,496,812       4,275,000                       -                 -
Fund Transfer Received -         -   (156,888,190)     (7,177,143)                       -             -
Settlement of Liabilities  -         -      (11,442,729)     3,032,064                       -           -
Liabilities Taken Over -       -     927,257          236,231                       -            -
As at 31 March -         -    246,807,790  247,714,640                       -           -

                                  Parent Company                                    Affiliates
2014 2013 2014 2013

Group Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Office Expenses paid - - - (4,762,335)
Commission Income Earned - - - 1,361,990
Short Term Loan obtained inclusive of Interest -                      -     10,355,537      241,856,324
Settlement of Short Term Loans -                      -    (287,589,825)    (195,586,394)
Sales proceeds received 440,000,000                      -                        -                             -
Short Term Investment with Interest 94,463,134                      -      69,362,163                             -
Proceeds Received from Issue of Preference Shares 600,000,000                      -                        -                             -

Parent Company: - Dunamis Capital PLC.

Subsidiaries: - Kelsey Homes  Limited , Kelsey Property Developers (Private) Limited and Kelsey Aluminum (Private) Limited.

Affiliates: -  First Capital Limited, Nextventures Limited.

Refer Note 7, 14 and 15 for outstanding balances with Related Parties as at 31 March 2014.

28.2 Transactions with Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel, are defined as those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group. According to the Board of Directors of the Group and their immediate family
members have been classified as key management personnel of the Group. Transactions with key management
personnel are as follows:

Group                             Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Directors Fees - 600,000 -    600,000
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DECADE AT A GLANCEDECADE AT A GLANCEDECADE AT A GLANCEDECADE AT A GLANCEDECADE AT A GLANCE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009          2008           2007           2006           2005
Rs.’000 Rs.’000  Rs.’000  Rs.’000  Rs.’000  Rs.’000  Rs.’000  Rs.’000  Rs.’000  Rs.’000

(Restated)

95,612 231,485 164,656 169,367 114,378 203,562    450,119       520,683    494,638     397,929

152,155 (54,929) (18,669) (7,964) (63,489) (67,589)     (43,357)        32,725   31,494         10,860
(16,018) (431) 498 (3,627) 903 (3,527)     (4,765)  (324)   (2,718)     (1,246)
136,137 (55,359) (18,172) (11,591)  (62,586) (71,117)  (48,122)         32,401         28,776     9,614

232,390 232,390 232,390 232,390  232,390 232,390  232,390             -                 -                 -
600,000 - - - - - - - - -
(64,350) (190,897) (135,425) (117,254) (105,429) (42,843)        28,274        85,111    75,456         46,680

15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000        15,000        15,000                 -                 -
- - - -   - -             -       174,293     77,463         51,642
- - - - - -             -         58,097      38,732                 -

783,041 56,494 111,964 130,136 141,961 204,547  275,664     332,501    191,651         98,322

846,283 382,174 386,680 170,162 219,516  494,389    568,153     646,270    368,528   220,787
(73,795) (329,857) (273,441) (38,586) (77,872)  (281,358)   (296,913)   (318,743)  (179,830)  (126,564)

10,000 5,355 - - - - - - - -
4,148 2240 1,141 1,434 2,532 4,146    14,246      14,441       7,243           9,101

- - - - - (9,063)     (3,717)     (4,938)     (577)    (1,314)
(3,597) (3,419) (2,415) (2,874) (2,215) (3,567)      (6,105)     (4,528)     (3,713)    (3,688)

783,041 56,493 111,964 130,136 141,961 204,547   275,664     332,501     191,651         98,322

7.41 (3.18) (1.04) (0.67)  (3.59)  (4.08)         (2.76) 2.63 4.70             1.86
10.50 3.24 6.42 7.46 8.15   11.74         15.82         19.08          31.32           19.04
17.50 15.00 14.20 16.20 13.00 7.00         16.50        23.50          40.75           21.50
2.36 (4.72) (13.65) (24.18) (3.62) (1.72) (5.98)             8.94        8.67       11.56

15.69 - - - - - -                 3        4.4            7.1
11.47 1.16 1.41 4.41 2.86 1.76 1.96 2.03            2.00            1.70
2.83 (0.054) 0.061 1.58 1.13 0.96 1.22   1.36              1.1           0.90

17.39 (98.18) (16.23) (8.9) (44.09) (34.77) (17.46)        10.00         15.01           9.78

Group

Year Ended 31  March

Trading Results

Gross Revenue

Profit/(Loss) before Taxation
Taxation
Profit/(Loss) after Taxation

Funds Employed

Stated Capital
Cumulative Preference Shares
Revenue Reserves
Capital Reserves
Paid up Share Capital
Share Premium

Assets Employed

Current Assets
Current Liabilities
Non Current Assets
Fixed Assets & Investments
Long Term Liabilities
Deferred Liabilities

Key Indicators

Earnings/(Loss) per Share (Rs.)
Net Assets per Ordinary Share (Rs.)
Market Price per Share (Rs.)
Price Earning Ratio
Interest Cover (Times)
Current Ratio
Liquidity Ratio
Return on Equity (%)
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INVESTORS’ INFORMATIONINVESTORS’ INFORMATIONINVESTORS’ INFORMATIONINVESTORS’ INFORMATIONINVESTORS’ INFORMATION

1 Stock Exchange Listing

The issued ordinary shares of Kelsey Developments PLC are listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange.

2 Distribution of Shareholding

No.of shares held                                    31 March 2014                                   31 March 2013
                                               Shareholders                     Holding               Shareholders                      Holding

       Number          %            Number            %           Number             %              Number               %

1            - 1,000        988   75.54       263,393     1.52 1,081       74.00      318,267 1.83
1,001     - 5,000              237   18.12       556,768     3.19 283       19.30          672,587 3.86
5,001     - 10,000              39     2.98       280,678     1.61 46        3.00          336,099 1.93
10,001   - 50,000                30     2.29       486,670     2.79 40          3.00          848,458 4.87
50,001   - 100,000                 6     0.46       404,942     2.32 2        0.10          124,850 0.71
100,001 - 500,000               5     0.38    1,122,882     6.44 7          0.50       1,384,224 7.94
500,001 -1,000,000               1     0.08       569,152     3.27 -              -                      - -
Over 1,000,000               2     0.15  13,744,789   78.86 2     0.10    13,744,789 78.86
Total             1,308 100.00  17,429,274 100.00 1,461      100.00    17,429,274 100.00

3 Analysis of Shareholders

Category of                                            31 March 2014              31 March 2013
Shareholders                       Shareholders                  Holding                 Shareholders                      Holding

Number        %             Number              %            Number           %             Number                 %

Joint & Individuals           1,245 95.18 4,133,879 23.72 1,389 95.07       4,230,059 24.27
Institutions                       63 4.82 13,295,395 76.28 72 4.93    13,199,215 75.73
Total                 1,308 100.00 17,429,274 100.00 1,461 100.00    17,429,274 100.00
Resident                 1,295 99.01 17,339,426 99.48 1,450 99.92    17,408,076 99.87
Non-Resident                       13 0.99 89,848 0.52 11 0.08            21,198 0.13
Total                 1,308 100.00 17,429,274 100.00 1,461 100.00    17,429,274 100.00

4  Public Holding

2013/2014 2012/2013
Number of shares held by the public  3,461,785     3,682,985
Percentage held by the public 19.86% 21.14%

5 Share Price Movements for the Year
2013/2014 2012/2013

Rs. Rs.
Highest - 26.50 19.30
Lowest - 12.50 9.00
Year-end - 17.50 15.00

6 Information on Share Trading and Market Capitalization

2013/2014 2012/2013
Number of transactions           4,059 2,735
Number of  shares traded   5,109,719 3,250,707
Value of shares traded (Rs.) 106,998,638 48,940,909
Market capitalization (Rs.) 305,012,295 261,439,110
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TOP TWENTY SHAREHOLDERS

INVESTORS’ INFORMATION (Cont.)INVESTORS’ INFORMATION (Cont.)INVESTORS’ INFORMATION (Cont.)INVESTORS’ INFORMATION (Cont.)INVESTORS’ INFORMATION (Cont.)

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS

Name of the Director No. of Holding No.of Holding
Shares % Shares %

as at as at
31 March 31 March

2014 2013

Mr. D. Schaffter       1,624,503       9.32       1,624,503 9.20
Ms. M. Mathews           222,700       1.28               1,500       0.01

Name of the shareholder No. of Holding No. of Holding
shares % shares %

as at as at
31 March 31 March

2014 2013

1 Dunamis Capital PLC      2,120,286 69.54     12,120,286     69.54

2 Mr. Dinesh Schaffter       1,624,503 9.32       1,624,503     9.32

3 Mr. Brahmanage Premalal           569,152 3.27       -       -

4 First Capital Markets Limited/Nextventures Limited           329,400 1.89           329,400       1.89

5 Nextventures Limited           247,700 1.42 247,700       1.42

6 Ms. M. Mathews           222,700 1.28 1,500       0.01

7 First Capital Markets Limited/Mr. M.A.U. Gunathilake           209,264 1.20 -       -

8 Dr. Ramani Maryanette Shanez Pieris           115,318 0.66 -       -

9 Mr. Ravindra Earl Rambukwelle             80,850 0.46 35,000       0.20

10 Mr.Manchanayake Appuhamilage Upali Gunathilake             80,702 0.46 -       -

11 Mr. Salem Ali Othman Ali Abo Qamaz             67,625 0.39 -       -

12 Mr. Kangasu Chelvadurai Vignarajah             66,525 0.38 66,525       0.38

13 Mr. Abeysiri Hemapala Munasinghe             58,325 0.33 58,325       0.33

14 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC/Mr. M.A.U. Gunathilake             50,915 0.29 -       -

15 Mr. Athula Ranaweera Kaluarachchige             50,000 0.29 50,000       0.29

16 Mr. Velupillai Baskerasundaram             27,533 0.16 -       -

17 Mr. Kishan Janaka Manamperi             25,660 0.15 -       -

18 Mrs. Waniganetti Vidanaralalage Dona Somawathi             25,000 0.14 -       -

19 Mr. Karuna Rajapaksha Gedara Wijesundara             20,400 0.12 -       -

20 Mr. Pichchai Ravichandran             19,000 0.11 -       -
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Name of Company - Kelsey Developments PLC

Company Registration Number  - PQ - 76

Name of Subsidiaries - Kelsey Property Developers (Private) Limited
Kelsey Homes Limited
Kelsey Aluminium (Private) Limited

Holding Company - Dunamis Capital PLC
No. 02, Deal Place
Colombo 03
Sri Lanka

Legal Form - Incorporated as a Public Company in 1983 under the provisions of the
Companies Act No. 17 of 1982 and subsequently re-registered under the
Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 on 05 September 2007. In 1984 the
Company was listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange.

Board of Directors - Mr. Dinesh Schaffter - Managing Director
Ms. Manjula Mathews
Mr. Nihara Rodrigo
Mr. Eardley Perera
Mr. Chandana L De Silva

Registered Office - No. 02, Deal Place, Colombo 03, Sri Lanka
Tel : (94 11) 5 355255
Fax : (94 11 ) 5 368216
Email : info@kelsey.lk

Secretary - K H L Corporate Services Limited
No. 02, Deal Place
Colombo 03
Tel : (94 11) 2639807, (94 11) 2639878

Registrars - Esjay Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd
No. 02, Castle Lane
Colombo 04
Tel : (94 11) 5444420

External Auditors - Ernst & Young Chartered Accountants P. O. Box 101
Colombo 10

Principal Bankers - Bank of Ceylon
(Alphabetical order) Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited
Hatton National Bank PLC

                Sampath Bank PLC

CORPORATE INFORMATIONCORPORATE INFORMATIONCORPORATE INFORMATIONCORPORATE INFORMATIONCORPORATE INFORMATION
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NOTICE OF MEETINGNOTICE OF MEETINGNOTICE OF MEETINGNOTICE OF MEETINGNOTICE OF MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 31st Annual General Meeting of Kelsey Developments PLC will be held on Wednesday 27
August 2014 at the Auditorium of Postgraduate Institute of Management, No.28, Leslie Ranagala Mawatha, Colombo 08.
at 3.15 p.m. to transact the following businesses:

1 To receive the Annual Report of the Board of Directors and the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for
the 12 months ended 31 March 2014 together with the Report of the Auditor’s thereon.

2 To re-elect Mr. Chandana L. de Silva who retires by rotation in terms of Article 85 of the Articles of Association
of the Company and offers himself for re-election.

3. To re-appoint Messrs Ernst & Young Chartered Accountants as Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year and
to authorize the Directors to determine their remuneration.

4. To authorize the Directors to determine and make donations.

By Order of the Board

(Sgd.)
K H L Corporate Services Limited
Secretaries

Colombo
4 August, 2014.

Notes :

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and vote on behalf of
him / her.

2. A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.
3. A Form of Proxy is enclosed for this purpose.
4. The completed Form of Proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, No. 02, Deal Place, Colombo

03, not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for the Meeting.
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I / We ………………......................................................................…………………………………….........................……………………………

Of…………………………………………......................................................................……………...........................………………………………

being a member/s of the above named Company, hereby appoint

Mr/Mrs/Miss ……………………………………................................................………….........................…………………………………………..

(holder of N.I.C. No. ………………………............................……………..) of………………................................................................……….

…………………………………………………………...............................................................................……………….. whom failing

Mr. Dinesh Schaffter of Colombo whom failing
Ms. Manjula Mathews of Nugegoda whom failing
Mr. Nihara E. Rodrigo of Negombo whom failing
Mr. A.D. Eardley I. Perera of Colombo whom failing
Mr. Chandana L. de Silva of Colombo

as my/our Proxy to represent me/us and vote on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held
on 27 August 2014 at 3.15 p.m. at the Auditorium of Postgraduate Institute of Management, No.28, Leslie Ranagala
Mawatha, Colombo 08 and at any adjournment thereof and at every poll which may be taken in consequence thereof.

Please indicate your preference by placing a “X” in the box of your choice against each Resolution.

Ordinary Business    FOR          AGAINST

1. Receiving of the Report of the Board of Directors and the Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2014 together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. Re-election of Mr. Chandana L de Silva, who retires by the rotation
in terms of Article 85.

3.  Re-appointment of Messrs Ernst & Young as Auditors of the Company
for the ensuing year and authorizing the Directors to determine their
remuneration.

4.   Authorizing the Directors to determine and make donations.

Signed on this ………………day of ……………2014

…………………..……….........…
Signature

…………………..........………….
Shareholder’s N.I.C./P.P./Co.Reg.No.

FORM OF PROXYFORM OF PROXYFORM OF PROXYFORM OF PROXYFORM OF PROXY
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1. Please perfect the Form of Proxy overleaf, after filling in legibly your full name and address, by signing in the
space provided and fill in the date of signature and your National Identity Card Number.

2. The completed Form of Proxy should be deposited at the office of the Secretaries, K H L Corporate Services
Limited of No. 02, Deal Place, Colombo 03, 48 hours before the time appointed for the holding of the meeting.

3. If an Attorney has signed the Form of Proxy, the relative Power of Attorney should also accompany the completed
Form of Proxy for registration, if such Power of Attorney has not already been registered with the Company.

4. If the Shareholder is a company or a corporate body, the Proxy should be executed under its Common Seal in
accordance with its Articles of Association or Constitution.

5. If there is any doubt as to how the vote is to be exercised, by reason of the manner in which the Form of
Proxy has been completed, no vote will be recorded by the Form of Proxy.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE COMPLETION OF THE FORM OF PROXYINSTRUCTIONS FOR THE COMPLETION OF THE FORM OF PROXYINSTRUCTIONS FOR THE COMPLETION OF THE FORM OF PROXYINSTRUCTIONS FOR THE COMPLETION OF THE FORM OF PROXYINSTRUCTIONS FOR THE COMPLETION OF THE FORM OF PROXY
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